Public Document Pack

Executive
Committee

M 27 Eeb REDDITGH 80R0UGH COUNCIL
2002n3 °

5.30 pm

Council Chamber,
Redditch Town Hall
Walter Stranz Square
Redditch

B98 8AH



If you have any queries on this Agenda please contact
Jess Bayley-Hill

Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH
Tel: (01527) 64252 (Ext. 3072)
e.mail: jess.bayley-hill@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

GUIDANCE ON FACE-TO-FACE MEETINGS

At the current time, seating at the meeting will be placed in such a way as to achieve
as much space as possible for social distancing to help protect meeting participants.

Please note that this is a public meeting.

If you have any questions regarding the agenda or attached papers, please do not
hesitate to contact the officer named above.

GUIDANCE FOR ELECTED MEMBERS ATTENDING MEETINGS IN PERSON

Members and Officers who still have access to lateral flow tests (LFTs) are encouraged to
take a test on the day of the meeting. Meeting attendees who do not have access to LFTs
are encouraged not to attend the meeting if they have common cold symptoms or any of the
following common symptoms of Covid-19 on the day of the meeting; a high temperature, a
new and continuous cough or a loss of smell and / or taste.

The meeting venue will be fully ventilated, and Members and officers may need to consider
wearing appropriate clothing in order to remain comfortable during proceedings.

PUBLIC ATTENDANCE

Members of the public will be able to access the meeting to observe proceedings if they wish
to do so. Members of the public who still have access to lateral flow tests (LFTs) are
encouraged to take a test on the day of the meeting. Attendees who do not have access to
LFTs are encouraged not to attend the meeting if they have common cold symptoms or any
of the following common symptoms of Covid-19 on the day of the meeting; a high
temperature, a new and continuous cough or a loss of smell and / or taste.

Notes:

Although this is a public meeting, there are circumstances when Council might have
to move into closed session to consider exempt or confidential information. For
agenda items that are exempt, the public are excluded.


mailto:jess.bayley-hill@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

REDDITCH BOROUEH CQUTCL
=2

Monday, 27th February, 2023

Executive 5.30 pm
Council Chamber Town Hall
Agenda Membership:
Clirs: Matthew Dormer Lucy Harrison
(Chair) Anthony Lovell
Nyear Nazir (Vice- Emma Marshall
Chair) Craig Warhurst

Karen Ashley
Joanne Beecham
Peter Fleming

1. Apologies

2. Declarations of Interest
To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and / or Other

Disclosable Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm the nature of
those interests.

3. Leader's Announcements
4. Minutes (Pages 5 - 16)

5. 30 year HRA business plan, investment programme and asset management
strategy for council housing (Pages 17 - 50)

6. Council Tax Resolutions 2023/24

(To follow)
{. Overview and Scrutiny Committee

8. Minutes / Referrals - Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Executive Panels etc.

To receive and consider any outstanding minutes or referrals from the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee, Executive Panels etc. since the last meeting of the Executive Committee, other
than as detailed in the items above.



Executive
Monday, 27th February, 2023

9. Advisory Panels - update report
Members are invited to provide verbal updates, if any, in respect of the following bodies:
a) Climate Change Cross-Party Working Group — Chair, Councillor Anthony Lovell;
b) Constitutional Review Working Panel — Chair, Councillor Matthew Dormer;
c) Corporate Parenting Board — Council Representative, Councillor Nyear Nazir;
d) Member Support Steering Group — Chair, Councillor Matthew Dormer; and

e) Planning Advisory Panel — Chair, Councillor Matthew Dormer.

10. To consider any urgent business, details of which have been notified to the
Head of Legal, Democratic and Property Services prior to the commencement
of the meeting and which the Chair, by reason of special circumstances,
considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until the next meeting



REDDITCH BUROUEH COUCIL
=2

www.redditchbc.gov.uk

MINUTES

Page 5 Agenda ltem 4

I Tuesday, 7th February,
Executive o
Committee

Present:

Councillor Matthew Dormer (Chair), Councillor Nyear Nazir (Vice-Chair)
and Councillors Karen Ashley, Peter Fleming, Lucy Harrison,

Emma Marshall and Craig Warhurst

Also Present:

Councillors Joe Baker, Joanna Kane and Sid Khan

Officers:

Peter Carpenter, Amanda Delahunty, Kevin Dicks, Claire Felton, Sue
Hanley and Michelle Howell

Principal Democratic Services Officer:

Jess Bayley-Hill

116. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors
Joanne Beecham and Anthony Lovell.

117. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.
118. LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Leader advised that he had no announcements to make on this
occasion.

119. MINUTES
RESOLVED that
the minutes of the meeting of the Executive Committee held on

10" January 2023 be approved as a true and correct record
and signed by the Chair.

Chair



Executive

Committee

Page 6 Agenda ltem 4

Tuesday, 7th February, 2023

120.

HOMELESSNESS PREVENTION GRANT 2023/24

The Housing Strategy and Enabling Manager presented a report
focusing on the Council’s Homelessness Prevention Grant funding
for 2023/24.

The Council had been awarded a total of £325,375 in
Homelessness Prevention Grant by the Government for the
2023/24 financial year. In addition, there had been a £35,000
underspend in the fund in the 2022/23 financial year which would
be available to use the following year. The funding was ring fenced
to support initiatives designed to prevent homelessness. In
considering the content of the report, Members were asked to note
that the Council had a statutory duty under the Housing Act 1996
(as amended), to assist people threatened with homelessness as
well as additional duties relating to preventing homelessness and
rough sleeping.

The report outlined the various different local schemes that officers
were proposing should be supported using funding from the
Homelessness Prevention Grant in 2023/24. The proposed
schemes included initiatives delivered by partner organisations in
the Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) which would help many
residents including vulnerable groups at particular risk of becoming
homeless, such as people leaving prison and young people. There
was a risk that if the Council did not support these schemes, the
authority might need to cover increasing costs for the provision of
temporary accommodation in Bed and Breakfast establishments.

Following the presentation of the report, the Portfolio Holder for
Housing and Procurement commented that he welcomed the
Homelessness Prevention Grant funding and the positive impact
that use of this funding could have on tackling homelessness in the
Borough. In particular, he highlighted the work to help vulnerable
groups at greater risk of becoming homeless and the excellent work
that various VCS organisations were already delivering in the local
community to address this issue.

During consideration of this item, the Portfolio Holder for Housing
and Procurement proposed an alteration to the wording of the
second recommendation detailed in the report. This proposed that,
in respect of the delegation to the Head of Community and Housing
Services to use any unallocated grant funding during the year and
to make further adjustments where appropriate, the delegation
should apply following consultation with both the Portfolio Holder for
Housing and Procurement as well as the Portfolio Holder for
Community Services and Regulatory Services. This proposal was
made on the basis of the importance of this funding to the local
community. The alteration was agreed by Members.



Page 7 Agenda ltem 4

Executive

] Tuesday, 7th February, 2023
Committee

RESOLVED that

1) the following initiatives be approved to receive allocation
of funding 2023/24:

Initiatives 2
(up to)

Redditch Nightstop - Outreach Worker to

support 21 to 35 year olds and prevent

homelessness or work towards planned 17,769

moves into suitable and sustainable

accommodation.

Redditch Nightstop Core Funding 8,667

Redditch Nightstop Safe Accommodation 20,000

and Support

CCP Rough Sleeper Outreach Service 47,556

GreenSquare Accord — 18 units of

supported accommodation for Ex 16,049

Offenders or those likely to offend

St Basils — Provide 24 hour cover to 23
units of accommodation for young people 14,910
aged 16- 23 years

Newstarts - Furniture Project to provide
furniture for homeless households.
Homelessness Prevention - Spend to
Save budget for use by Housing Options 17,060
Officers

Temporary Accommodation Management
—as 3.1 above

St Basils Smallwood Almshouses -
Progression Coach to offer additional
support that can operate outside of
normal office hours to fit around a young 19,287
persons education, training and
employment.

10,000

66,380

Citizens Advice Debt Advice 16,333

St Basils Young Persons Pathway
Worker

St Basils Crash Pad emergency
accommodation

County Partnership Manager 8,300

18,195

35,086

Batchley Support Group 10,000




Executive

Committee

Page 8 Agenda ltem 4

Tuesday, 7th February, 2023

121.

Single and Childless Couples Homeless

) : 33,460
Prevention Service
Total £359,052

2) delegated authority be granted to the Head of Community
and Housing Services following consultation with the
Portfolio Holder for Housing and Procurement and the
Portfolio Holder for Community Services and Regulatory
Services to use any unallocated Grant during the year or
make further adjustments as necessary to ensure full
utilisation of the Grants for 2023/24 in support of existing
or new schemes.

INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL REPORT 2023/24

The Head of Legal, Democratic and Property Services presented
the Independent Remuneration Panel’s (IRP’s) report concerning
Members’ allowances for the 2023/24 financial year.

The Executive Committee was informed that the IRP comprised a
membership of independent persons who lived in Worcestershire.
The IRP made recommendations about Members’ allowances for
most Councils in the county. Whilst the Council was not obliged to
approve the IRP’s proposals, Members needed to have due regard
to the IRP’s recommendations.

The IRP was proposing that the basic allowance for Members
should be increased by 7.37 per cent, which would increase the
basic allowance from £4,732 to £5,081. The IRP had also made
proposals regarding the Special Responsibility Allowances (SRAS)
that could be paid to Members for holding specific posts at the
Council. Members were asked to note that the IRP did not suggest
paying multiple SRAs to individual Members which was an
arrangement that was currently in place in Redditch. Should
Members approve the IRP’s recommendation in respect of SRAs in
this report, this would result in a saving to the Council.

Members discussed the proposals detailed in the IRP’s report and
in doing so commented that it would be inappropriate to increase
Members’ allowances by 7.37 per cent during a cost of living crisis.
However, it was suggested that the Council should not postpone
increases to Members’ allowances indefinitely, as this would place
the level of remuneration available to Redditch Members behind
that available at other local authorities in Worcestershire. Members
would have an opportunity to consider this further at a later date
when preparing for the 2024/25 financial year. There was general
consensus that, as no changes were proposed by the IRP in
respect of travel allowances, subsistence expenses and carer’s



Executive

Committee

Page 9 Agenda ltem 4

Tuesday, 7th February, 2023

122.

allowances, the recommendations on these subjects should be
supported.

RECOMMENDED that

1) travel allowances for 2023-24 continue to be paid in
accordance with the HMRC mileage allowance;

2) subsistence allowances for 2023-24 remain unchanged;
3) the Dependent Carer’s Allowance remains unchanged; and

4) for the Parish Council in the Borough, if travel and
subsistence is paid, that it is paid in accordance with the
rates paid by the Borough Council and in accordance with
the relevant Regulations.

PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2023/24

The Interim Section 151 Officer presented the Pay Policy Statement
2023/24 for Members’ consideration.

The Executive Committee was informed that there was a legal
requirement, under the Localism Act 2011, for the Council to adopt
a Pay Policy Statement on an annual basis. This statement needed
to outline the relationships between the lowest and highest paid
staff employed by the Council and therefore a breakdown of pay
was provided per pay scale, including in respect of the most senior
positions. The remuneration for management graded posts was
reviewed by an external assessor.

Members were informed that in each grade there were a number of
scales of pay. Staff progressed up these scales based on
performance which was assessed during annual appraisals. The
Appointments Committee was involved in appointing the most
senior staff, including the statutory officer positions of Head of Paid
Service, Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer as well as
Chief Officer positions.

The report was discussed by Members and it was noted that a
typographical error had been made in respect of the title of the
report. It was suggested that this should be addressed prior to the
publication of the report for the consideration of Council.
RECOMMENDED that

the Pay Policy Statement 2023/24 be approved.



Executive

Committee

Page 10 Agenda Item 4

Tuesday, 7th February, 2023

123.

2023/24 BUDGET AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN
2023/24 TO 2025/26 (INCLUDING TREASURY MANAGEMENT
STRATEGY AND CAPITAL PROGRAMME)

The Interim Section 151 Officer presented the Medium Term
Financial Plan (MTFP) 2023/24 to 2025/26 (including the Treasury
Management Strategy and the Capital Programme) for the
Executive Committee’s consideration.

Members were asked to note the following when considering the
report:

o The report built on the tranche 1 savings of £1.5 million that
had been agreed in November 2022.

o An assumption had been made that the Council would agree a
2.99 per cent increase to Council Tax for 2023/24. A report on
the subject of Council Tax Resolutions would be presented for
the Executive Committee’s consideration at a meeting
scheduled to take place on 27" February 2023.

o The costs to the Council arising from the pay award to staff for
2021/22 had been slightly less than previously anticipated due
to staff vacancies.

o The funding from Government for the Council represented a
one-year settlement.

o Final figures had been received from the actuaries for the local
government pension contributions for staff which had been
taken into account in the report.

o Funding had been set aside for anticipated increases to the
costs of utilities, with 50 per cent allocated to the base budget
and 50 per cent to earmarked reserves, the value of which
would fall over the three-year period of the MTFP. This
arrangement was in place as it was anticipated that utilities
costs would start to decline during the period of the plan.

o Whilst there would be income from business rates, Officers
were assuming that there would be a high level of non-
payment and this had been taken into account when preparing
the report.

o There were a number of additional pressures that had been
reflected in the proposed budget:

- Refurbishment of the Council’s vehicle fleet and fuel
payments. Members were advised that there would be a
need to respond to requirements set out in the
Environment Act. The costs of biofuels, compared to
diesel, were increasing and this would also need to be
taken into account.

- There was a fund for apprenticeships and Officers were
aiming to link this to staff grades in order to take advantage
of the Government’s apprenticeship levy.



Executive
Committee

Page 11 Agenda Item 4

Tuesday, 7th February, 2023

- There was a need to fund a new Data Analyst post. At
present, there was only one member of staff at the Council
trained on how to undertake this work and Officers
believed that the Council’s system, Power BI, could be
used more effectively.

- There remained pressures arising from planning
enforcement.

Council Tax collection rates for the 2022/23 financial year

were at around 98 per cent and this was taken into account

when calculating likely income from Council Tax for
subsequent years.

The Corporate Management Team (CMT) had reviewed the

earmarked reserves in December 2022, as there were a

number of reserves that had not been used for some time. As

a consequence, a number of the reserves had been released,

including funding that would be used to address the rising

costs of utilities.

Officers were assuming that the general fund would be in a

surplus position by the third year of the plan, although there

would be gaps to address in the first and second years.

By the third year, the Council was projected to have reserves

of £2.1 million. The Government suggested that Councils

should have reserves equivalent to 5 per cent of the
authority’s income. The Interim Section 151 Officer was
suggesting that in Redditch, reserves should represent closer
to 9 per cent of income, to take account of debts and
expenditure too.

Action would need to continue to be taken to raise the

reserves in the general fund. Therefore, Members and

Officers would be encouraged to continue to consider

efficiencies that could be made in service delivery as well as

potential savings.

Legally, all buildings in the public sector would need to have

an Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) rating of E or better

by 2026. Some buildings could potentially be upgraded but
others might have more complex issues and would potentially
need to be sold.

Staff retention and recruitment remained an area of concern

for local government in the West Midlands, including for

Redditch Borough Council. Therefore, there was a need to

review how best to attract and retain skilled and qualified staff

moving forward.

There was the potential that some redundancy payments

would need to be made. However, given there were in excess

of 100 vacancies in the shared services between Redditch

Borough and Bromsgrove District Councils, it was possible

that staff placed at risk in service reviews could be redeployed

in other departments.



Executive
Committee

Page 12 Agenda Item 4

Tuesday, 7th February, 2023

o The capital programme was underspent. However, there were
some signficant projects included in the capital programme,
including the replacement of the vehicle fleet and expenditure
of the Town’s Fund on the regeneration of Redditch town
centre.

o Members had recently agreed that the rents for Council house
tenants should increase by 7 per cent. Whilst Officers were
working on the basis that a similar increase would occur in
2024/25, for service planning purposes, decisions could only
be taken on a yearly basis regarding rent increases and the
report in respect of the following financial year could therefore
contain different proposals.

o The Treasury Management Strategy had also been included in
the report, which detailed how the Council intended to
approach borrowing. Members were asked to note that the
Government no longer permitted local authorities to borrow for
yield.

o The Council had not had to borrow to fund the capital
programme since 2011 and it appeared likely that the authority
would be able to continue to use internal resources to fund the
capital programme over the following three years.

o The Investment Strategy detailed the support that could be
provided to local groups where needed, subject to submission
of robust business cases.

The Interim Section 151 Officer concluded the presentation of the
MTFP by outlining his views of the robustness of the budget and the
risks associated with the budget. Members were advised that a
number of risks had been identified which included:

o The Council’s 2021/22 accounts had not yet been closed,
although Officers were close to completing this work.

o An overspend was anticipated for the 2022/23 financial year.

o The impact of inflation on the costs of service and project
delivery remained an area of concern.

o There was a risk that the authority could potentially lose key
personnel due to the age profile of the Council’s existing
workforce.

o The authority needed to lobby the Government regarding
calculations for the Council Tax Base. The Council was
placed at a disadvantage as the Council Tax Base was
calculated based on the number of band d equivalent
properties in the local authority area and the majority of
houses in Redditch were classified as bands a — c.

o The Council needed to complete projects, for which the
authority had received grant funding from the Government,
within relatively tight timescales, including for the regeneration
of the town centre. Should these works not be completed to



Page 13 Agenda Item 4

Executive

] Tuesday, 7th February, 2023
Committee

deadline, the Council would have to return funding to the
Government.

The Interim Section 151 Officer had concluded that the figures
contained in the MTFP were robust. There were also adequate
reserves, although more efficiencies needed to be achieved in order
to ensure that there remained sufficient reserves moving forward.

Following the presentation of the report, the Portfolio Holder for
Finance and Enabling thanked the Interim Section 151 Officer, the
Head of Finance and Customer Services and the rest of the
Finance Department for their hard work on the budget. It was
suggested that the content of the budget was more transparent and
easier to follow than it had been in previous years, due to the layout
of the report.

Members acknowledged that there remained financial challenges
which would need to be addressed by the Council moving forward.
In particular, Members noted that there was a need to maximise
use of grant funding. It was also noted that Portfolio Holders had
collective responsibility for ensuring that they questioned Officers
about services within their remit and took nothing for granted.

RECOMMENDED approval of
1) thetranche 2 growth proposals;

2) the additional funding to the Council as per the Local
Government Settlement on the 19" December 2022,
including the estimated levels for 2024/5 and 2025/6;

3) thetranche 2 savings proposals, including an Increase of
Council Tax at 2.99 per cent;

4) the Capital Programme 2023/4 to 2025/6 and associated
projects where outstanding budgets will be allowed to be
carried forward at the end of the 2022/23 financial year;

5) thelevels of reserve being carried forward into future
years;

6) the level of General Fund balances being used to balance
budgets over the Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP)
period; and



Executive
Committee
124.
125.
126.

Page 14 Agenda ltem 4

Tuesday, 7th February, 2023

RESOLVED that

7) the Chief Financial Officer’s (CFO) Opinion on Estimates
and Reserve Levels —the Robustness Statement (Section
25 Statement) — be noted.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Members were informed that there were no outstanding
recommendations arising from the minutes of the meeting of the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 8" December 2022
requiring the Executive Committee’s consideration.

RESOLVED that

the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee held on 8" December 2022 be noted.

MINUTES / REFERRALS - OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE, EXECUTIVE PANELS ETC.

Members were advised that there were no referrals from the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee or any of the Executive Advisory
Panels for consideration on this occasion.

ADVISORY PANELS - UPDATE REPORTS

The following updates were provided in respect of the Executive
Advisory Panels and other bodies:

a) Climate Change Cross Party Working Group — Chair,
Councillor Anthony Lovell

In Councillor Lovell’s absence, Members noted that a meeting
of the Climate Change Cross Party Working Group had taken
place in December 2022. During this meeting, Members had
discussed the planning process and action that could be taken
in relation to this process to enhance the biodiversity of the
local environment.

b) Constitutional Review Working Group — Chair, Councillor
Matthew Dormer

Councillor Dormer explained that a meeting of the
Constitutional Review Working Party had taken place on 23"
January 2023. During this meeting, Members had considered
a number of reports and had made some recommendations
about changes that could be made to the constitution. These
recommendations were due to be considered at the following



Executive
Committee

Page 15 Agenda Item 4

Tuesday, 7th February, 2023

d)

meeting of Council scheduled to take place on 27" February
2023.

Corporate Parenting Board — Council Representative,
Councillor Nyear Nazir

Councillor Nazir commented that there had been a meeting of
the Corporate Parenting Board on 315t January 2023. During
this meeting, the Board had learned that there had been a
recent spike in the number of school exclusions taking place.
The situation in respect of this matter had improved slightly
between autumn 2021 and 2022 and the Virtual Schools
Board was working with local schools to address this problem.

The numbers of unaccompanied child asylum seekers in
Worcestershire had increased from 29 to 89. The children,
some of whom had escaped from war zones, were provided
with support and the Board was working hard to ensure that
this support met their needs.

The Executive Committee was reminded that Councillor Nazir
was the Board’s District lead for employment and
apprenticeships. It was noted that Redditch Borough Council
had signed up to the pledge to help care leavers secure
apprenticeships and it was hoped that some care leavers
would therefore apply to take up apprenticeship opportunities
at the Council.

Member Support Steering Group — Chair, Councillor Matthew
Dormer

Members were advised that a meeting of the Member Support
Steering Group had taken place on 17t January 2023. During
this meeting, the group had considered feedback provided by
Councillors in completed surveys on the subject of reducing
paper waste for Council and Committee meetings. Based on
the feedback received, as well as the need to address pledges
in the Council’s Carbon Reduction Plan to reduce paper
waste, the group had agreed that there should be an
assumption that all Members would go paperless moving
forward. However, individual Councillors could opt to continue
to receive paper copies of agenda packs and Members were
urged to notify Democratic Services by Friday 17" February
2023 if they wanted to continue to receive paper copies of
agenda packs.

Councillor Dormer advised that there was due to be a Member
training session focusing on how to use the modern.gov app,
which was scheduled to take place in the evening on 13t



Executive
Committee

Page 16 Agenda Item 4

Tuesday, 7th February, 2023

February 2023. This training would outline how the app could
be used to access and annotate agenda packs electronically
and Members were urged to attend this session.

The Member Support Steering Group had also agreed at their
latest meeting that, where Councillors continued to receive
paper copies of agenda packs, they should collect these from
their post trays at the Town Hall. This represented a return to
the arrangements that had been in place for many years prior
to the Covid-19 pandemic.

Planning Advisory Panel — Chair, Councillor Matthew Dormer

Councillor Dormer confirmed that there had been no meetings
of the Planning Advisory Panel (PAP) since the previous
meeting of the Executive Committee.

The Meeting commenced at 5.30 pm

and closed at 6.18 pm




Page 17 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

30 year HRA business plan, investment programme and asset
management strategy for council housing

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Craig Warhurst
(Housing and Procurement)
Councillor Karen Ashley
(Finance and Enabling)
Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes

Relevant Head of Service Sue Hanley

(Deputy Chief Executive)

Peter Carpenter

(Executive Director of Finance)
Guy Revans

(Head of Environmental Services and
Housing Property Services)

Judith Willis
(Head of Community and Housing
Services)
Report Author Job Title:
Simon Parry - Housing Property Services
Manager

Contact email:
simon.parry@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Contact Tel:

01527 64252

Wards Affected All Wards

Ward Councillor(s) consulted No

Relevant Strategic Purpose(s) ‘Finding somewhere to live’

‘Living Independent, active, and
healthy lives’

‘Communities which are safe, well
maintained and green’.

Non-Key Decision

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in
advance of the meeting.

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

The Executive Committee RECOMMEND that: -

1) The Housing Revenue Account 30-year Business Plan 2023-
2053 be approved as set out in Appendix 1.

2) The Housing Asset Management Strategy be approved as set
out in Appendix 2.

3) The Housing Capital Programme 2023-2027 be approved as set
out in Appendix 3



Page 13 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

2. BACKGROUND

2.1  The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is the financial account that is
used to manage the Council’s Landlord activities. The HRA account
can only be used to provide services to Council Housing tenants
through the collection of rent and other service charges.

2.2  The HRA covers a wide range of services to tenants and Leaseholders
including

Maintenance & Improvements
e Day to Day Repairs
e Managing Empty Homes
e Major Improvements
e Estate based and environmental improvements
e Aids and Adaptations
e Cleaning of communal areas in flats

Compliance activities

e Gas Servicing

e Electrical Testing

e Fire Safety

e Lift Maintenance

e Asbestos Management

Housing Management

e Rent Collection including service charges
e Income advice and support

e Tenancy and Estate Management

e Allocations

e Right To buy

e Garage rentals

e Homelessness

2.3  The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan sets out the
priorities and provides direction for the management of the Council’s
Social Housing Stock over the next 30 years. The Business Plan has
been reviewed, at the same time as developing a new HRA Asset
Management Strategy, to ensure that the investment in the Council’s
Housing stock provides homes that have modern facilities, are safe
and warm as contained within the 5-year Housing Capital Programme.



Page 19 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

2.4 HRA Business Plan

2.4.1 The HRA Business Plan (Appendix 1) sets out the Council’s income
and expenditure plans for delivering services to Redditch Borough
Council Housing.

2.4.2 The plan relies on several assumptions including changes in stock
levels, right to buy sales, the number of voids, rent increases, debt,
management costs for delivering the services above and borrowing
costs associated with capital investment requirements that are based
on stock condition information. More detail on these assumptions is
included in the financial implications below. These assumptions are
reviewed annually as a minimum.

2.4.3 The HRA Business Plan ensures that the Council has HRA reserves
that are established and maintained at appropriate levels to provide a
safety net for cost pressures or significant changes to assumptions
made.

2.4.4 The long-term capital forecasts over the 30-year period are based on
the Stock Condition Survey undertaken in 2019/20. This independent
survey was commissioned to undertake a sample stock condition
survey of the housing stock, garages, and parking sites. The survey
provided an independent opinion of the 30-year profile of re-investment
required for the Housing Stock broken down into the various categories
of expenditure.

2.4.5 The reporting categories used within the stock condition data followed
the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC)
guidance as follows

Catch-up Repairs.

Future Major Works.

Improvements.

Estate Works.

Contingent Major Repairs.
Exceptional Extensive Works.
Cyclical Maintenance.

Disabled Adaptations

Responsive Repairs and Void Works.



Page 20 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

2.4.6 The survey identified that the housing stock was in a reasonable state
of repair with a proportionally low level of catch-up repairs and early
years works required, however continued investment over a 30 year
period was required in order to ensure that all properties are
maintained to provide a good standard.

2.4.7 The proportion of responsive repairs and voids works at the time of the
survey were deemed higher than expected when compared to the level
of capital investment at that time. The reduced level of Capital
Investment was largely due to the Service Review having restructured
Housing Property Services including the Capital Team in 2019.

2.4.8 Subsequently however the level of repairs required has increased with
the restrictions made during 2020 and 2021 because of the Covid-19
Pandemic. The contents of this report illustrate the Capital Programme
of investment to improve our housing stock over the next 5 years.

2.5 HRA Asset Management Strategy

2.5.1 The Housing Asset Management Strategy (Appendix 2) sets out the
strategic approach to managing the Council’s Social Housing Stock
over the next 5 years. It sets out key principles and strategic priorities
for projects and programmes to ensure that the housing stock is well
maintained.

2.5.2 There are several key objectives within the strategy including to ensure
we provide properties with modern facilities, that are safe and warm,
and that repairs and maintenance activities are conducted in a cost
effective and timely manner. This applies not only to the properties
themselves but also the environment in which they are located.

2.5.3 Over the 30-year period that the stock condition survey results
covered, clear re-investment priorities are identified including

e Kitchens and bathrooms (28%)

e Heating system and space heating (22%)
e Electrical Installations (18%)

e External windows and doors (14%)

2.5.4 The HRA Capital Programme includes a variety of projects that will
seek to ensure properties are improved to provide better safety, more
modern facilities, such as kitchens and bathrooms, and to improve the
thermal efficiency of properties.



Page 21 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

2.5.5 Compliance functions including Fire, Electric, Gas and Asbestos are a
key part of the Asset Management Strategy to ensure our homes are
safe to live in. Compliance has seen significant improvements over the
last 2 years with works completed and improvement programmes being
delivered. For Fire Prevention the Council is required to undertake Fire
Risk Assessments for our flatted accommodation. This has identified a
range of improvements that are part of a rolling programme of
improvements including new fire doors, fire alarms, preventative works
and signage which continue to be upgraded initially across our
previously ‘sheltered’ accommodation.

2.5.6 The programme of Electrical Inspection and Condition Reports (EICRS)
required to test the electrical installations in our housing units on a 5-
year cycle continues and includes checks on the level of smoke and
carbon monoxide detection equipment in our properties to ensure they
are compliant.

2.5.7 The Council’s internal Gas Team have, over the last two years,
provided increased levels of service and compliance through the
delivery of the annual servicing programme, which checks all
properties with gas to ensure compliance with Regulations, the delivery
of gas repairs, as well as a programme of boiler replacement.

2.5.8 The replacement programme has been developed by targeting various
models of old (14+ years) low efficiency (65%) boilers that have parts
that are difficult to source. To date approximately 700 boilers have
been replaced over the last 2 years with modern, efficient (90+%)
boilers with associated 7-year warranties.

2.5.9 To further test compliance the Gas Engineers are audited by an
external audit company which has seen performance rise from 74%
two years ago to 100% in December 2022.

2.5.10 The Gas Team were also audited by the Internal Audit team in 2022,
looking at ongoing investment in gas appliances in the Council’s
Housing stock, that Annual Gas Safety checks were undertaken,
records were up to date and that Gas Engineers had the required
certification and training. The conclusion of the report gave Significant
Assurance.

2.5.11 A survey of asbestos in our communal areas has been undertaken and
included a programme of removal of those items identified at risk.
Other asbestos containing materials are still present in these areas



Page 22 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

however these are subject to cyclical re inspection in order to ensure
their integrity has not been altered. An internal Audit of Asbestos
Management within Housing Property Services was also conducted in
2022 and this also gave a Significant Assurance outcome.

2.5.12 Improving the Energy Efficiency of our Housing Stock, together with
lowering the impact on the climate, are key drivers within the strategy
with a target of ensuring all of our properties meet a minimum Energy
Performance Certificate Rating of C.

2.5.13 We have seen an increase in reported cases of Damp and Mould
cases over the winter period and following the case and inquest into
the death of Awaab Ishak. A review of our working practices has taken
place and work is being delivered to remove this from our properties
together with customer facing documents to assist in the removal of
condensation from our properties. An internal working group has been
set up to monitor the delivery of the action plan to tackle this particular
issue.

2.6 HRA Capital Programme 2023/24-2027/28

2.6.1 Based on the Capital Investment requirements contained within the
Stock Condition Survey under, predominantly, the Future Major Works
category a 5-year Capital Programme has been identified. This sets out
the investment under various budget heads to complete works that will
in turn reduce the volume and value of responsive and void repairs
over the period.

2.6.2 The programme has been built around the key principles as outlined in
the AMS

1. Maintenance through an effective Repairs Service,

2. Compliance functions being managed through good data
management, processes and cyclical testing or inspection regimes

3. Ongoing investment to ensure compliance with the Decent Homes
standard

4. Improving the thermal efficiency of our properties to achieve an
EPC rating of C or above

2.6.3 The Repairs Service is currently under review regarding its structure
and processes to ensure that it delivers an effective and efficient
service to our tenants. Significant improvements have been made
within the Voids team in ensuring repairs to voids are undertaken in a
timelier manner, as well as significant reductions in the number of voids
open, as this will directly impact on the assumptions made within the



Page 23 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

Business Plan with the reduction of rent experienced while properties
are empty.

2.6.4 The Capital Programme is established to ensure our properties remain
compliant with the Decent Homes standard as well as providing
thermal comfort through increased Energy performance.

2.6.5 The 30-year projection is based on the condition of the housing stock
and assets from the stock condition survey. A rolling stock condition
survey will be commissioned with results uploaded into the Asset
Management Database to refresh data as part of the review of the plan
and to ensure that capital investment is targeted accurately as part of
future years programmes. This programme aligns with the Business
Plan and is developed to align with the Asset Management Strategy.

2.6.6 The HRA Capital Programme 2023/4-27/8 (Appendix 3) aligns with the
data from the stock condition data and is established to ensure our
properties have modern facilities are safe and warm. Over the initial 2
years of the programme budgets have been included to ensure that the
Council’s responsibilities regarding compliance activities such as
Electrical Rewires and Smoke detection upgrades are undertaken.

2.6.7 Works to improve fire protection across the housing stock form part of
the programme to ensure that properties have the correct level of fire
compartmentation together with new front and communal entrance
doors.

2.6.8 We are also reviewing our Housing Stock to establish opportunities for
re modelling existing buildings in order to create new housing units in
order to extend both the number and choice of units available for our
customers.

2.6.9 The internal refurbishment programme will ensure that the replacement
and or upgrading of kitchens, bathrooms, associated wiring and heating
works are undertaken across the Borough.

2.7 Regulator of Social Housing (RSH)

2.7.1 In September 2022 the RSH launched a ‘Tenant Satisfaction
measures’ (TSM) document which places a responsibility on all social
housing landlords in England to return performance information, so that
each provider can be assessed for how well it is providing good quality
homes and services. This is part of the strategy to improve services for
people living in social housing that was published in 2020 under the
Social Housing White Paper — The Charter for social housing residents.



Page 24 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

2.7.2 The TSM document sets out 22 measures covering 5 themes.

Keeping Properties in good repair
Maintaining Building Safety

Respectful and helpful engagement
Effective handling of complaints
Responsible neighbourhood management

abrwnhpE

2.7.3 Of the 22 measures they are split between those that the landlord is
required to measure directly (10 No.) and those that are measured by
tenant perception surveys (12 No.) (Appendix 4)

2.7.4 These new requirements come into force on 1st April 2023 with the
results for 2023/24 to be forwarded to the RSH in the Summer of 2024
which will be subsequently published in Autumn 2024. It is anticipated
that these will form ‘league tables’ so that tenants of their respective
landlord can benchmark against our peers.

2.7.5 Whilst the survey results are not expected to be returned until Summer
2024 the approach adopted across Housing is to seek to develop a
survey based on the criteria and questions specified by the RSH and
release the survey in the new financial year. This will allow the Service
to ensure the survey and its methodology is in line with the criteria of
the survey. It will also allow the service to understand the current level
of perception and to ensure dedicated plans are in place for any
identified areas for improvement.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1  Through the development of the 30-year HRA Business Plan a number
of key assumptions have been made. These include the following
points:

e Consumer price index assumed at 2% per year from year 3 in line
with government inflation target.

¢ Retail Price inflation with drives cost assumed at 10% in year one of
the plan, 7.5% in year 2, 5% in years 3 and 4, and 3% thereafter.

e Pay inflation assumed to be 4.4% in year 1, 2.5% in year 2 and 1%
thereafter.

¢ No additional borrowing assumed in this plan.

e Interest rate applied to Housing Revenue Account balances is
1.56%

e Rental Income assumes:



Page 25 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

» An average rent of £150.41 and £96.65 on a 48 week basis for
affordable and social rent properties respectively

» New tenants will pay target rent.

> Rentincrease of 7% in years 1 and 2 in line with Government
guidance and 3% (CPI +1%) thereafter.

» Rent Loss from voids is assumed to be 1.2% of rental income
per year

» Provision for bad debts assumed to be 2% of rental income for
the next 2 years to allow for the cost-of-living situation, reducing
to 1.5% for the remaining years

e A minimum HRA revenue reserve of £400 per property (£2.1m) will
help to mitigate the risk of unforeseen circumstances. A prudent
level of HRA balance reserve will be determined annually as part of
the budget setting process.

e RTB assumed to be 40 sales per year with 1,200 sales over 30
years.

e Capital charges of £4.2m based on HRA total debt of £122.2m, this
includes £98.9m taken out on a fixed interest only basis in 2012 to
cover the self-financing settlement payment.

e No debt repayment is assumed in this plan

National Rents Policy

3.2  The Direction on the Rent Standard 2019 issued by the Government in
February 2019 confirmed that from 1 April 2020 weekly dwelling rents
can be increased by CPI inflation (Consumer Price Index), plus 1% for
the 5 year period through to 2024/25. This is the fourth year following
the new rent standard guidance. An increase of CPI plus 1% in 2023-
24 will have resulted in a rent increase of 11.1%

3.3 Onthe 31st of August 2022, DLUHC published a consultation on a
draft Direction to the Regulator of Social Housing about social housing
rents in England. DLUHC was seeking views on whether a rent cap
should be introduced, where it should be set and whether it should
potentially cover one or two years

3.4 In the Autumn statement issued by the Chancellor on the 17th of
November 2022, The government stated that it is capping the amount
that social rents can increase by next year at 7% compared to
circa.11.1% under current rules (CPI plus 1%).

HRA Borrowing Cap



Page 26 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

3.5  Self-financing placed a limit (Debt Cap) on borrowing for housing
purposes at the closing position for 2011/12 at £122.2 million, however,
the removal of the cap means that the HRA can borrow (within
prudential limits) to pay for investment in our existing stock and provide
new homes.

Capital Investment

3.6  Capital investment in our existing homes, is funded primarily from the
Major Repairs Reserve, which holds the depreciation charge to the
HRA and can be used purely to finance investment in existing stock
and the repayment of HRA debt.

3.7 Capital receipts from Right to Buy sales can also be used to finance
the HRA capital investment programme, although some of these
receipts can only be used to finance new homes to replace those that
have been sold. Borrowing, which is no longer capped, can also be
used to finance the capital programme providing that it is affordable
and complies with the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local
Authorities. No additional borrowing is assumed in this plan.

3.8 Revenue surplus generated by the HRA is transferred to an earmarked
capital reserve and this usable reserve is currently used as match
funding for the new homes program but can also be used to repay HRA
debt.

3.9 The table below summarised capital resource requirements on a 5 year
basis over the full 30 year Business plan. The detailed year by year
plan is set out in Appendix 1.



Page 27 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

Cutturn
2022(23 2023-2028 2028-2033 2033-2038 2038-2043 2043-2048  2048-2053
£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Major Repairs Reserve
Internal Fefurbishment 300,000 | 12,500,000 13,671,025 15,545,465 18,372,114 21,293,01 24,631,391
Eoiler Replacements sso000 | 5,850,000 4,101,307 4,754,539 5511814 5,553,703 TADT 4T
High Trees Project 50,000 I TH0,000 0 o] 0 o o
Esternal Riefurbishment zosp0n | 2,500,000 3,251,046 3,505,631 4,409,451 511,765 5,325,354
Electrical Upgrades 300,000 | 500,000 546,541 533,333 734,909 B51,960 957,656
Dioor Entry and Security Upgrades 600,000 I 450,000 410,131 475,454 551,151 E35,370 T4D, AR
Smoke Detection Upgrades 530,000 I 1,100,000 546,541 633,333 T4, 303 G51,360 957,656
Balcony Replacements 10,000 I 00,000 o o ] a a
Najor Woids o000 | 2,500,000 2,754,208 3,163,633 5,674,543 4,253,502 4,355,278
Enerqy Efficiency 70,000 I 3,TR0,000 4,101,307 4,754,533 EETE4 B,553,T03 40T 417
Diisrepair Cases 5000 250,000 273420 316,369 367454 425,950 493,525
Fire Compartmentation 1sa0,000 1 2,250,000 1,367,102 1554,546 1,837,271 2,129,301 2,463,133
Giarage Improvement Works - T 1,100,000 1,367,102 1554, 846 1,837,211 2,129,301 2463,133
Strucutral Fepairs 5,000 375,000 410,151 475,454 551,151 638,370 740,742
Asbestos General 200,000 | 500,000 546,541 533,333 734,909 B51,960 957,656
Capitalized Salaries soooo0 | 2,500,000 2,754,208 3,163,633 5,674,543 4,253,502 4,355,278

6,365,000 36.075.000 36.031.505 41,833,946 48503 365 56,223,383 65.185.273

Capital Receipts

Dizabled Adaptations 200000 1 1,750,000 1,367,102 1,564,546 1,537,2M 2,123,301 2,463,133
HR& Stock - Remadelling - T 500,000 546,541 633,333 734,309 51,960 387,656
Estate & Environmental Improvements 450,000 I 1,250,000 1,367,102 1,554,546 1,537,271 2,123,301 2463153
Estates FParking and Faving - T 650,000 F20,261 350,305 1,102,365 1,217,341 141,455
Stack Condition Survey Fees 750,000 520,261 350,308 1,102,565 1,277,381 1.451,455
Housing Management 550,000

1,000,000 4,900,000 4,921,563 5705447 6,614,177 T.667.644 8888901
Mew BuildlAcquisitions 2,300,000 15,200,000 16,200,000 17,200,000 15,200,000 12,200,000 20,200,000

10,265,000 56175000 57.213.0T4 64.745.394 T3.315.142 83.09T.033 34274174

Financed by

Major Repairs Reserve 555,000 36,075,000 36,091,505 41,559,945 45,503,965 56,228,559 65,155,275
Capital Receipts 1,000,000 4,300,000 4,321,563 5,705,447 6,614,177 TEET 544 &568,301
Capital Receipts earmarked For acquisition 1,160,000 5,060,000 6,450,000 550,000 7,250,000 TE50,000 5,050,000
HRA Capital Reserve 1,740,000 3,120,000 3,720,000 10,520,000 10,820,000 1,520,000 12,120,000

HRA - Borrowing

10,265,000 56,175,000 57,213,074 64,745,394 13,315,142 83,097,033 34,274 174

Financial viability of the Housing Revenue Account

3.10 The Business Plan is based upon financial modelling to ensure the
financial viability of the HRA over the next 30 years.

3.11 The reduction in the number of dwellings from Right to Buy sales
represent a loss of income and can jeopardise the long term financial
viability of the HRA if these dwellings are not replaced. The current
Government policy encourage the council to replace homes with the
proceeds from RTB Sales. To mitigate the impact of the loss of rental
income, the capital investment program will finance 600 replacement
homes over the life of this plan.



Page 23 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

3.12 We have to look at Right to Buy assumptions as to the viability of the
Housing Revenue Account, as reductions in numbers of dwellings
impacts works required in terms of delivery, magnitude and cost.

HRA Rental income - Sensitivity analysis to net reduction in Number of dwellings

2023.24 2024.25 2025.26 2026.27 2027.28
Net Reduction
i b
'n humBber or £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Dwellings per
year
20 25,658 27,357 28,076 28,815 29,572
25 25,649 27,323 28,015 28,727 29,454
50 25,589 27,136 27,697 28,269 28,849
75 25,534 26,955 27,384 27,316 28,248
100 25,474 26,768 27,066 27,358 27,643
125 25,419 26,587 26,752 26,906 27,043
150 25,360 26,401 26,434 26,448 26,437

The business plan assumes a net reduction of 20 dwellings over the
next five years as highlighted in tables above (RTB less acquisitions).

The sensitivity analysis shows the impact of net reductions in dwellings
on rental income over the medium term or first five years of the

plan. Typically for every additional 25 properties lost, in year 1, the
value of rental income reduces by £60k.

By Year 5 the equivalent rent loss for every additional 25 properties is
approximately £600k.

3.13 The impact of the rental income affects the net operating expenditure.

HRA Net Operating Expenditure Surplus(-) or deficit (+) Sensitivity Analysis to net reduction in number of dwellings

2023.24 2024.25 2025.26 2026.27 2027.28
Net Reduction
in number or £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
dwellins per
year
20 449 11,145 11,370 11,445 11,761
25 ~a42 -1,120 41,325 -1,380 -1,673
50 -308 -081 -1,087 -1,040 11,224
75 -357 -845 -854 -704 -779
100 -312 -706 -616 -364 -330
125 271 571 -382 -29 115
150 -226 -432 -145 311 565




Page 29 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

3.14 Based on current assumption the plan ensures:

» Adequate level of balance reserves is maintained to help manage
risk and mitigate the impact of unforeseen circumstances

» A robust capital programme that is fully funded from available
resources within the HRA

» Surpluses are generated and transferred to a capital reserve and
used to match fund the costs of replacement homes.

» The council complies with the legal requirement and does not set a
deficit budget for the HRA

3.15 Under the assumptions used in the base business plan, the Housing
Revenue Account can maintain useable reserves at £2.7m and this will
be reviewed annually as part of the budget setting process.

3.16 The HRA will continue to generate surpluses over the 30-year period,
and these will be transferred to earmarked capital reserve. The table
below sets out the income and expenditure assumptions for the next 30
years:
e Taking account of the assumptions set out in 3.1 above
e Summarising on a 5-year basis

Appendix 1 sets out the full 30 year plan
2022/23 | 2022/23 | 2022/23 2023-2028 2028-2033 2033-20382038-20432043-20452048-2053
Revised | Forecast

Budget budzet | Outurn Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
INCOME
Dwelling Rents 24,025| 24,025 24,033 | 139,478 | 159,918 | 181,992 | 207,034 | 235,437 | 267,039
MNon-Dwelling Rents 556 556 525 3,135 3,660 4,243 4,919 5,702 6,611
Tenants' Charges for Services & Facilities 692 692 572 3,387 3,954 4,584 5,314 6,161 7,142
Contributions towards Expenditure 46 46 53 260 284 330 382 443 514
Total Income 25,318| 25,318| 25,182 146,260 167,817 191,149 | 217,649 | 247,743 | 281,905
EXPENDITURE
Repairs & Maintenance 6,545 6,545 6,326 | 35,106 39,414 | 43,710 48,588 | 54,137 60,439
Supervision & Management 8,219 8,219 7,991 | 45471 48,973 52,461 | 56,285| 00,487| 65,115
Rent, Rates, Taxes & Other Charges 264 264 350 1,438 1,756 2,115 2,560 3,096 3,750
Provision for Bad Debts 190 190 360 2,472 2,517 2,867 3,265 3,716 4,229
Depreciation & Impairment of Fixed Assets 5,994 5,994 5,994 | 34,708 40,369 | 45,038 | 51,151 | 58,174| 66,097

Interest Payable & Debt Management Costs 4,179 4,179 4,179 | 20,895 20,895| 20,895| 20,895| 20,895 20,895

Total Expenditure 25,390| 25,390| 25,199 140,000| 153,924 167,089 | 182,783 | 200,506 | 220,544
INet Operating Expenditure 12 72 17| 5170 -13,803| -24,060 | -34,866 | -47,238 | -61,361
Interest Receivable = =} -221 -1,044 -1,132 -1,626 -2,521| -3,870| -5,746
Transfer to/{from) general reserves -69 -69 204 0 0 0 0 0 1]
Transfer to/(from) Earmarked Reserves 7,214 15,025 | 25,686 | 37,388 | 51,108| 67,107
[Surplus)/Deficit on Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BALANCE
Forecast Balance as at beginning of year 2,466 2,515 2,515 2,719 2,719 2,719 2,719 2,719 2,719
Surplus/(deficit) for year -69 -69 204 0 0 0 0 0 0

Forecast Balance as at end of year 2,397 2,446 2,719 2,719 2,719 2,719 2,719 2,719 2,719




Page 30 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

3.17 Alongside assumptions for Right To Buy losses within the stock profile
assumptions have also been included for the development, acquisition
and remodelling of housing stock to provide additional units forms the
strategy for reducing the impact of RTB losses.

3.18 Currently the Council’s housing growth programme has 19 units of
accommodation under construction and 8 sites agreed for development
expected to provide an additional 37 units of accommodation over the
next 3 years. A Housing Development Officer is now in place to deliver
this programme and identify additional sites to be added to the
programme to maintain the delivery of additional properties in the
future.

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1  The HRA consists of expenditure on Council owned assets, primarily
its Housing. There is a statutory requirement that the Council is obliged
to keep its Housing Revenue Account separate from other housing
activities in accordance with the Local Government and Housing Act
1989 (as amended).

4.2  The Council has a duty to disclose specified information in relation to
the HRA and its operation under the Housing Revenue Account
(Accounting Practices) Directions 2016.

4.3  In November 2020 MHCLG (now DLUHC) published guidance on the
operation of the Housing Revenue Account ring-fence and highlighted
the need to be fair to both tenants and council taxpayers and that there
should be a fair and transparent apportionment of costs between the
HRA and General Fund.

4.4  The Localism Act 2011 introduced a system of Council Housing finance
which replaced the HRA subsidy system with self-financing
arrangements.

4.5 In October 2018 the HRA borrowing cap was abolished allowing local
authorities the opportunity to borrow against expected rental income in
accordance with the CIPFA Prudential Code 2021 (as amended).

5. STRATEGIC PURPOSES - IMPLICATIONS

Relevant Strateqgic Purpose

5.1  This report supports the strategic priorities of the Council principally in
ensuring the Council provides a range of Housing for our tenants that



Page 31 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

provide modern, safe and warm housing as part of ‘Finding somewhere
to live’.

5.2  Providing funding and programmes of works to ensure properties can
be adapted to suit the needs of individuals is a key component of
achieving ‘Living Independent, active and healthy lives.’

5.3 Investment within the environment in which the Council’s Social
Housing stock is located including designing out crime, better security
and safety measures as well as well-maintained space will assist in
achieving ‘Communities which are safe, well maintained and green’.
Investing in energy efficiency of our stock as set out in 5.4 below also
supports this Strategic Purpose.

Climate Change Implications

5.4  The Government’s Clean Growth Strategy 2017 and Heat and
Buildings Strategy 2021 sets a target for social housing providers to
achieve a minimum Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) rating of C
by 2030 for all fuel poor properties together with a target to make all
homes ‘net zero carbon’ by 2050. Within the Capital Programme
budgets there are budgets set aside for improving the energy efficiency
of the housing stock in order to meet Government.

5.5 The upgrading of electrical installations including LED lighting, more
efficient gas boilers and further research and implementation of viable
renewable energy technologies will assist in carbon reduction as a
consequence of the use of our housing assets.

5.6 Increased thermal efficiency, more efficient lighting and heating will
assist all of our tenants including those in Fuel Poverty. Support and
Guidance is also offered through our contracted Energy Advice Service
provider regarding energy bills, minimising home energy use, and
referrals for energy saving measures.

5.7  New build properties delivered through the Council housing growth
programme will be constructed to the highest energy efficiency rating
viable and utilise renewable heating systems rather than gas boilers.

5.8  The improvement of the energy efficiency of the Council’s housing
stock is an important step in tackling fuel poverty and improving the
quality of life of tenants and future tenants to reduce fuel bills and
improve their quality of life. This will also assist the Council in reducing
its carbon footprint in line with the Council’s Climate Change Strategy

6. OTHER IMPLICATIONS




Page 32 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

Equalities and Diversity Implications

6.1 Understanding the profile and needs of tenants will give greater insight
into how specific requirements can be addressed and funded. The
ongoing implementation of the new Housing System will assist in the
development of a robust and detailed tenant profile, in conjunction with
planned tenant engagement and wider local demographic data.

6.2  There are positive equalities implications resulting from the proposed
plan, including the focus on heating, thermal efficiency, and window
replacement, which will benefit physical health and wellbeing, those
with long term conditions or disabilities and people in fuel poverty or
struggling with the cost of living. The provision for aids and adaptations
will also support people with a disability to remain, and remain
independent, in their properties.

6.3  The provisions detailed in the plan, such as tenancy support, income
advice and homelessness support will all help vulnerable tenants, such
as those experiencing mental health challenges.

Operational Implications

6.4  As part of the ongoing review within Housing Property Services and the
Housing Management Service Area a core objective is to ensure that
there is sufficient capacity, knowledge and skills to deliver the range of
services contained with this report.

6.5 The implementation and successful utilisation of ICT software,
modernising service delivery and a greater emphasis on Performance
Management will be critical factors in delivering the services.

6.6  The current cost of living situation will impact on some of our tenant’s
ability to pay their rent and could have an impact on this Plan. Several
actions are being undertaken to support tenants and to keep arrears
and bad debts to a minimum, for example:

1. Referrals to Home Finance Advisors who provide money advice
and assist residents to maximise their income.

2. Moving Universal Credit claimants on to Alternative Payment
Arrangements and apply for arrears direct payments as a
preventative measure to avoid legal action.

3. Working with Revenues and Benefits to access additional support,
such as discretionary housing payments and make referrals to the
Citizens Advice.



Page 33 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

4. Utilising the Homelessness Prevention Support Grant where
applicable.

5. Developing a partnership agreement with Redditch Job Centre to
provide additional support to our residents who visit the job centre.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

7.1  The Council may be in breach if a 30-year HRA Business Plan is not
agreed.

7.2 There are a wide range of assumptions that are built into the model,
combinations of these assumptions not being accurate, could impact
significantly on the affordability of the plan. Ongoing and regular review
of these together with the reserves, mitigate against these risks.

7.3  Alarge proportion of the works identified to improve our council housing
stock is reliant on the capacity and performance of contractors. Good
Contract and performance management will allow us to understand and
manage this risk.

8. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS

Appendix 1 — 30 Year HRA Business Plan

Appendix 2 — Housing Asset Management Strategy
Appendix 3 — Housing Capital Programme 2023/4- 2027/8
Appendix 4 — Tenant Satisfaction Measures

9. REPORT SIGN OFF

Department Name and Job Title Date

Craig Warhurst (Housing and 14/2/23
Portfolio Holder Procurement)

Karen Ashley (Finance and
Enabling)

Guy Revans 14/2/23
Lead Director / Head of (Head of Environmental
Service Services and Housing Property
Services)

Peter Carpenter 15/2/23
(Executive Director of Finance)
Judith Willis 14/2/23




Page 34 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

(Head of Community and

Housing Services) 15/2/23

Sue Hanley (Deputy Chief

Executive)

Kunmi Joseph 712123
Financial Services

Claire Green 3/2/23
Legal Services

Rebecca Green 13/2/23
Policy Team (if equalities
implications apply)

9/2/23

Climate Change Officer (if | Matthew Bough (Strategic
climate change Housing Manager)
implications apply)

Appendix 1 30 Year HRA Business Plan



Agenda Iltem 5

Page 35
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

27" February

Executive Committee

2023

GL7 (6T [sut leiT et e lewt el [ewt |ewr lewt |eut o |e (et |eifT 6wt et [suT et |6 (eMt (6T (6HT [T |L66T JE3hJ0 U 1858 20UE[Eg 15E3alny
o0 o o Jo Jo o fo o o o o fo o fo o o o Jo fo o o Tm [ (e Jeak oy yap) emding
LT |67 |eut |eeT o lent el lewt et |ewT |eut o |eT o leut el lent el lewt (et |et st |eif7 lent el ot |oisz [sr | Jeahgo Buundag pese anueeg g
TINYIVE LNMOD0Y JTINAAH SNISTIOH
o o o o o fo foofo o o o o Joofo o foofo oo oo ool o0 e e s3Il U0 Jayaq fsnidng)
e |k [scw lust owt [wee [oms e it [wre |ouh et [t [wet et [t (et [oset [mer |met [T |m SaAS3Y PaNlelLle3 oy ) Jasel]
o0 o o o fo Jjo oo o o o qjo o o o o o o o ol o (e [e sahzsal Jauad (Wou oy el
T N1 o T S 1 S U (S it s 17 1< R < /o o e e EEERETR ]
o5 |SrE (T |6 |0y |sve (0% (e |eors | |wr |90 |oerE oot (6T [T wr o0 lu amypuadeg funesadg jay
GEEE [FT9'%E | Q06U [STZE |OhOE [7aR'E [ovd'st [ewhe [T00% [wOt'se [ocsTe |Tri [SE'TE |0 [auce [sste [osctr s [wist (o' |eesnr ' eevar [oeeT [o6e's ainypuade o]
B |6 et |6t (et (e et (e lemt (e |eTh o (s |ev o (et |sdv o (e e (eI |ecw (6T (e |60 6y |6 [AG | sisoowawaleuey 1gaq g apete e
VEETT SO |BOLOT |[6POT |ZECOr [E6 (TS (s (e |70 |wuch (7SR (o (bo® (60 (ML (RO |TEL|S0L [oB6 |89 (6T wES (PGET (weE'S | Stesey oo uauedul p uogepaitag
A TR T T - O - N T U T T o 1 S 1 = S B < S =B S /T 1T 1 S 131 SJ02(] PR ) O
6 o|es |me s me me e | lew [my o |wor e (e wE T (s e |we o wE | (e e o | [w sall) 13D 1y sate] ‘saley 3y
BETD |BUTD [ OBSTD |WFTT [4STT |SAOTD [OvRT B0 (/9T |ogvOr |seDT |s0rn |seor |s% |zece (oo |oese |eovh (s v (s |oevs TeRL |et® [Aizh uBlUz3euE) § uosiuedng
8501 [0960T |ETOT [EC6 |25 |05 (L6 |7TG |T6® |8 |/SSR|TRES [ST (0% (M8 |07l |Sesy |enyl |y |TS0C |89 |9 ezEd (a9 |opsd AeLEIR psueday
TNLONIA
T80 G0y |98 W% OOSEY |[SETH Q0T |dbrOb |OWCGE |SOTEE |WUCLE |S9UOF |OEESE |OTPME |GbSEE | L9 |[SBTE | L1076 |GZOE |OWSL |EBVEL W6 LBV |WIEST 8IS auwow| oy
T T T T /1 T 1 B T 1 - V7 < SO /N /N A N S SO B [ Iy puade3 lemol uopnguaLe)
GIT (00T |7 Pe0T T |t 0T a5 |we |oe |em o e e e o | @ (e e |me e ;e s | [z a8 IS 1y e SlUeuR)
WT (P07 |BOT |TNT (W6 [p% |96 |05 |68 (®mB 68 (e (W (s | o (e | |09 1w |m9 |us @S (e o SJuRY Bujamguoy
PORSH |0y |B05SD |GSHTr |&lETy (SIEQR |Z06'SE [TOE'E (9766 |GIEUE |GWSE |ESYE [TO0'EE |OOBTE [GORTE |SOTTE |GEUE |TiR (SRS |90 |LSEUT [ 0w [sao |su suay Bugmg
00N

000% | o000 | OOOF | O00F | O0OF | o00F | O0OF | O0OF | O00F | O0OF | OOOF | 00O | O00OF | 000F | oOoOF | O0OF | OO0 | 0003 | O0OF | OOOF | 00O | 0003 000F [ O0OF | 0003

wmpng | 128png
O | G | GO | | GO | R | G | G | | S| | O | | G | G | | A | | A | | | sy Jadpng
CHt07 | PY'EROT | ET0T | THTROC | THOR0T | ¥6E07 | GE'BEOZ | BELE0T | LEOEOT | 9E'CEDT | SEHEOT | BECEOT | SETEOT | ZETEOT | 1E060T | E6I0Z | 6Z'BT0T | STLIOL | L9207 | 9TSI0T | STHIO | vTER07 E2fti0T |erfeaor [sefiio




Agenda Iltem 5

Page 36
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

27" February

Executive Committee

2023

Appendix 1 Cont’d

6TL'T BTLT BTL'T BTL'T BTL'T 6TL'T BTLT BTLE Jead Jo pua 1e se adJue|eq 15823104
0 0 0 a 0 0 0 0 Jeah oy (waap)/sniding
6TL'T BTLT BTLT 6TLE B6TLT 6TL'T BTLT BTLE Jeak yo Buiuuidag 1e se aoue|eg 15833104
FINVIVE LNNOIIY INNIATY DNISNIOH
0 i] 0 0 0 0 0 0 532135 U0 Jalag/(snding)
TZ8'%T TOF'ET | TZLTT | ZO0°ZT | ¥ZF'TT | SOB'OT | £20Z°0T 53MI953Y payleLuLeT (ool Jagsuel )
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 sandasal |elauad (woly)/ol Jagsuel)
BTE'T- FET'T- trLT- 090'T- 186~ 006~ QEs- 041 2|geAla0aY 1534a1U]
E6Y'ET- | B9BTT- |£SEZ°TT- | ¢99°TT- | TBO'TT- |815'01- | 696'6- EEV'E ainypuadx3 Suneradp 19N
veg'sy |096'vv | BBO'WY | ovEZ'Er | 9Fv'Ev | 99"ty | vvR'Ov | £BO'OF ainypuadx] ejoL
BLT'Y BLT'Y BLT'F BLT'F BLT'Y BLT'F BLT'Y BLT'Y 51507 Juawafeury 1920 g jgeded 152131u|
CTOG'ET | ZSS'ET | TIT'ET | BLB'ET | ESS'ET | LEZCT | 8TE'TT | LZO'TT 51355y paxid 40 Juawedw| g uoienaidag
068 £98 Sre g £08 8L [AT4 EvL 51420 peg J04 UdIsiAclg
608 844 6L 0L = £99 9 819 sadieyD 1ayip g saxe| ‘saley ‘Juay
CTY'ET | STZ'ET | BTQ'ET | LZ8'ZT | BEQTT | ESPCT | ZLTZTT | ¥EOZT JuawaBeuey g uoisiuadng
BEOZT | BCEZT [ SB0ZT | 6T2'TT | BSS'TT | LOE'TT |[TOO'TT |T1Z2'0T AIUBUSIUIEIN 13 SNIedaY
FHNLIANIdXT
f7e'ss [ L1B'IS | SbE'0S | BOG'vS | LOS'ES | E€vT'ZS | EIR'0S | OTS'6Y SWwaodu| [ejoL
60T 90T €0T 00T i6 e X 68 aInupuadx3 SpIEMOL SUDIINGUIUGD
PIST 0Lt'T LZF'T 98E'T CFE'T a0ET B07'T TE2'T 5311|1984 *g S301MI3S 10} s9EIRYD Slueua)
T0F'T T9ET TZET 8T SFT'T 60Z'T FLTT GET'T §1uay Buljama-uoN
EQE'DS | TBB'¥S | PeF'ES | OPT'ZS |OZB'0S | ¥ES'6Y |TIBT'BY |LS0°LTF sjuay Juljma
FNOINI

000, F 000, F 000, F 000, F 000, ¥ 000, F 000, F 000, F

128png | 128png | 1=8png | 1°3png | 1°8png | 198png | 198png | 1=8png

E9°CS0E | E57ES02 | TS5050¢ | Sev0e | eF'8k0E | BY'LPOE | LPOVOE | 9P SEOE




Page 37 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

Appendix 2 — HRA Asset Management Strategy
Redditch Borough Council - Housing Asset Management Strategy 2023-2027

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Redditch Borough Council (the ‘Council’) has a retained stock of
affordable housing located within the county of Worcester. This
document sets our approach to the strategic management of our
assets over the next 5 years; with reference to the anticipated
reinvestment requirements over the next 30 years. It is directly linked to
the Council’s Corporate Plan 2020-2024, Local Plan Housing Strategy,
the Worcestershire Housing Partnership Plan and supported by the 30-
year Business Plan and forms a strategic golden thread throughout the
business.

1.1  This strategy helps us ensure a focus on:

e The safety and security of residents in their homes and
communities;

e Achieving net zero carbon (NZC) milestones for our homes;

e Accurate data driven reinvestment decisions;

e Putting in place a properly funded business plan for asset
investment and repair;

e Ensuring our stock is fit for purpose and financially viable.

1.2 We have embraced the principles of effective asset management,
recognising the importance of:

e Accurate stock condition information, accurate and up to date
compliance records;

e A transparent and robust mechanism for assessing stock
viability and sustainability;

o [Effective governance, stewardship and procurement;

e The value of a healthy relationship between the Asset
Management, Housing Operations, Housing Management and
Development functions;

o Effective programme and repairs service delivery.

2.0 STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AND CONSULTATION

This strategy sets out the mission, enablers and strategic objectives for
the Council and its operating functions and how service development is



Page 33 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

driven by these. The Council aims to be recognised as a truly customer
centric organisation. During 2019/20 the Council reviewed and set the
following strategic priorities:

e Run and grow a successful business;

e Finding somewhere to live;

e Aspiration, Work and Financial Independence;

e Living independent, active, and healthy lives; and

e Communities which are safe, well maintained, and Green

2.1 The Grenfell Tower tragedy in June 2017 and thereafter the Fire Safety
Act 2021, Building Safety Act 2022 and Social Housing Bill 2022 have
further highlighted safety issues that remain in the affordable housing
sector and what the Council will need to consider in future
management and investment within homes. Whilst other issues such
as the lack of affordable housing, welfare reform (Universal Credit),
deprivation, homelessness, and demographic changes are all still
relevant there is now a clear priority on the safety of residents in their
communities and providing them with a forum to raise any concerns.
Whilst the Council does not have any higher risk buildings (HRBs) as
currently defined by the Building Safety Act 2022, we still need to
consider other complex buildings (e.g., sheltered, and elderly
accommodation) and those of medium height (11 to 18 meters) which
over time are likely to become prescribed as HRBs.

2.2 In addition, the UK government amended its Climate Change Act in
June 2019 to introduce a legally binding zero carbon target for the UK
for 2050. A further strategic requirement is the eradication of fuel
poverty. The Government has set out its further ambitions for housing
with a target for getting all homes to EPC C by 2030.

2.3  The Corona virus, COVID-19, pandemic affected affordable housing
providers in a variety of ways including the temporary cessation of
planned investment works and emergency repairs as well as impacting
many other services. The impact on resources and the ability to deliver
asset management related investment is a priority against the
backdrop of a difficult economic position impacted by the conflict in
Ukraine and the rising costs of living. In particular the costs of materials
and fuel which have led to higher levels of inflation than have been
seen in the last 40 years.



Page 39 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023
2.4 A key responsibility of the Council is to ensure there is effective

2.5

2.6

3.0

3.1

engagement with its tenants and providing customer focussed services
based on two-way communication. A review of tenant engagement is
ongoing and will include annual surveys as prescribed by the Regulator
of Social Housing, publishing an Annual Report highlighting
performance, successes and areas of improvement required. This will
be supported by bespoke consultation to groups and or individuals
based on the programmes of work to be delivered. The Council
believes that paying attention to the views of residents assists with
improving satisfaction with the service as a whole.

A key focus is to ensure the front-line services are efficient and
customer focussed. The implementation of the new Civica CX system
(Housing Management and Repairs Software) will enable better
business information and performance data regarding the delivery of
the Responsive Repairs service. Analysis of the balance of trades and
their respective skills is being undertaken which will result in further
recruitment to deliver a more productive and efficient service in line
with best practice.

Over the last two years significant improvements have been made to
the management of voids significantly reducing both the number of
properties open and the time that they are void. Both directly impact on
the Council’s ability to receive rental income from these properties.
Further work is ongoing to provide continuous improvement to
processes and resultant performance.

OBJECTIVES
The key objectives of this strategy are:

e Aligning with the Council’s six strategic priorities, which are
based on our commitment to providing residents with effective
and efficient services that not only meet their needs but
understand them.

e Ensuring the health, safety and security of our residents and the
communities in which they live.

e Managing and maintaining homes to a good standard.

¢ Improving and maintaining homes, and as a by-product,
continue to meet the Regulator of Social Housing’s ‘Home
Standard’ (including Decent Homes).



Page 40 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

e Programming and procuring works so that repairs and
maintenance is conducted cost effectively and responsively, in a
way that reflects residents’ needs, preferences and aspirations.

e Ensuring that necessary re-investment in the stock is made a
key priority within the Council’s financial framework.

e Improving environments on estates and supporting community
regeneration.

e Ensuring all homes meet our landlord obligations for health and
safety compliance.

e Ensuring the stock is fit for purpose and meets the needs of
residents, the business and that demonstrate viability as well as
value for money.

3.2.1 In order to deliver these objectives, the Council must ensure that the
requirements of the stock are affordable in the context of its HRA
Business Plan.

4.0 OUR ASSETS

4.1  Our housing stock includes 5,711 dwellings and 532 leaseholders. All
the stock is all located within Redditch Borough. The Council does not
own any higher risk buildings (HRBs) (defined as properties with at
least 7 storeys or at least 18 metres in height by the Building Safety Act
2022).

4.2  In addition to dwellings, The Council is also responsible for the
management of a number of assets related to dwellings, for example
garages, unadopted roads, street lighting and paths. In October 2019
there were 197 garage sites comprising 1,340 garages and 1,044 off-
curtilage parking sites.

4.3  The extent of any non-traditionally constructed dwellings (including
PRC construction etc.) is to be assessed as part of the new stock
condition survey programme that will continually update information on
our Housing Stock and Assets. Any non-traditional construction will
need to be intrusively assessed by a specialist structural engineer, so
that any structural repairs can be identified within the forecast
expenditure plans. Provisional amounts have been included as an
interim measure.

4.4  The Council recognises that the home remains truly at the heart of our
tenants’ needs and wellbeing and we aim to provide appropriate



Page 41 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

adaptations to enable our residents to live independently. We also
acknowledge our social responsibility to provide these adaptations and
facilities for disabled and vulnerable people and to comply with the
requirements of the Equality Act. Providing this service not only has a
significant effect on the resident’s welfare but also relieves significant
pressure on the local health service.

5.0 OUR CURRENT POSITION

51 Stock Condition

The Council commissioned a stock condition survey in October 2019
which comprised a 100% inspection of blocks and common parts, as
well as off curtilage garages and parking sites. A sample survey
(55.8%) was undertaken of homes and the data uploaded into a new
asset management database. Where surveys have not been
undertaken yet, information has been cloned within the asset
management database to provide a whole stock assessment.

5.2  The survey identified that the housing stock is in a reasonable state of
repair with a proportionately low level of catch-up and early years work
required. The stock will require continued expenditure over a 30-year
planning term to maintain homes to a good, tenantable standard.

5.3  According to the stock condition survey the priority issues for re-
investment (% of total 30-year expenditure indicated) include:

e Kitchens and bathrooms (28%)

e Heating system and space heating (22%)
e Electrical Installations (18%)

e External windows and doors (14%)

5.4 Initial Tenders have been procured to enable the delivery of internal
refurbishment works (Kitchen, Bathrooms, Electrical and Heating
Works) identified above. Over 2021 and 2022 the Council identified a
programme of replacement boilers to remove old, inefficient, hard to
repair boilers and during this time replaced over 700 units with modern
efficient boilers.

6.0 Decent Homes



Page 42 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

The Decent Homes Standard is a Government led initiative, introduced
in 2000, and now incorporated into the Home Standard which is one of
four consumer standards that registered providers of social housing
must comply with. The Council met the standard in 2010 and now must
maintain homes to it, in a logical and affordable manner.

6.1 The Council plans re-investment works in accordance with the
forecasts of stock condition survey, as part of a wider programme.
Decent Homes works will therefore continue to be delivered as a by-
product of effective works planning, founded from an ethos of pre-
planned and programmed ‘just in time renewals’ (as promoted by the
DLUHC in their Decent Homes and stock condition survey guidance)
and in logical geographical groups.

6.2 The asset management database identified an overall Decent Homes
failure rate of 3.33% (i.e., 41 of the 1,230 surveyed dwellings as part of
the stock survey), however at that time, 9.93% was Potentially Non-
Decent, within the next two years. The Council will assess Potentially
Non-Decent over a 5-year period as part of its Capital Programme of
works.

6.3  The Council plans to maintain Decent Homes by developing works
programmes in 5-year bands. An amount of non-decency may
therefore be experienced within any 5-year period, although zero non-
decency will be delivered at the end of each programme period. In this
way the Council can maintain a logical programme of work that afford
economies of scale and value for money and avoid the need to
‘pepper-pot’ works year on year to meet this standard.

7.0 Compliance

The Council has and will continue to undertake regular reviews of
housing compliance risks using both internal and external resources.
These reviews will ensure that related policies, management plans,
procedures and processes for each of the core compliance risk align
with our landlord obligations. This will ensure the health and safety of
our residents, visitors and other stakeholders are maintained.

7.1  The key risk areas that will be reviewed are:

e Asbestos containing materials
e Fire including Fire Risk Assessments



Page 43 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

e Electrical safety (a 5-year testing programme);

e Water safety (legionella and scalding risks);

e Lifts and lifting equipment; and

e Fuel and Gas Safety (annual testing and servicing of boilers)

7.2  The Council have developed related policies, management plans,
procedures, and processes for each of the core compliance risks,
aligned with our Landlord Obligations. These are subject to regular
review and auditing using both internal and external resources as
verification. This will ensure the health and safety of our residents,
visitors and other stakeholders are maintained.

7.3  Programmes of work have and continue to deliver a range of
compliance functions including fire prevention works to previously
sheltered accommodation, upgrading of smoke and carbon monoxide
detection, an ongoing programme of Fire Risk Assessments, cyclical
testing of fire alarms, emergency lighting, lift installations, electrical
systems and boilers.

8.0 ENERGY EFFICIENCY

Based on the 2019 sample Stock Condition Survey, the average
Standard Assessment Procedure (SAP) score for Redditch’s homes is
67.9, which is EPC band D (band C beginning at SAP 69).
Approximately 40% of the stock has an EPC lower than C. The stock
will need improvement works to improve it to band C by 2030 and
thereafter NZC (band A) by 2050. These targets should ensure that
where practical all our stock achieves the Government low carbon
emission targets.

8.1  The current financial forecast does not include for retrofit
improvements, although it does include for component replacement
which can help to deliver improved energy efficiency, for example,
window replacement. Over the next year we will undertake more
detailed analysis and modelling of our stock to determine the measures
needed to improve energy efficiency and reduced carbon emissions.
This will enable us to determine the funding required and put in place
programmes of works which align with cyclical and planned works, to
minimise disruption to residents and obtain better value for money.

8.2  As part of the strategy to attract external funding to support Energy
Efficiency Works the Council has applied for funding via the Social



Page 44 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

Housing Decarbonisation Fund with results to be announced around
March 2023. These works are tackling the worst performing properties
based on a ‘fabric first’ approach. In 2022 the Council were successful
in attracting Local Authority Delivery 2 (LADs) funding that improved
properties in Laurel Close.

8.3  The selection of energy efficient measures likely to be required and
that form part of the criteria of funding streams based on the ‘fabric
first’” approach will include:

e The installation of double/triple glazing;

e The installation of cavity wall insulation;

e The addition of External Wall Insulation (EWI);

e The improvement of loft insulation to at least 300mm thickness;

e Proper insulation of hot water cylinders and pipework; and

e Air and ground source heat pumps, especially to off gas grid
homes.

8.4  Before considering options, it is important for the Council to fully
understand its starting point through a detailed analysis of the energy
efficiency performance of its stock. The Council has commissioned a
consultant to undertake specialist energy efficiency modelling to assist
with the understanding of our strategic needs and the related delivery.

8.5  The modelling will use the latest RASAP method, with additional and
enhanced analysis using georeferenced data. The model will use all
relevant asset data to produce a full energy model of the Council’s
housing stock. The collation and cleansing of data will usually involve
some cloning and highlight conflicting or missing data. To reflect this,
the model stores a data confidence score for every data point. This
allows the highlighting of homes with the poorest data confidence as
priority for survey, or to identify particular data areas (for example
heating information, or floor information) that need improving across
the stock. This could be used to focus a programme of energy surveys
designed to improve the quality of energy data if required.

8.6  Once the data is in the model, the Council can view and report on the
stock’s baseline performance and profile and identify installation
options. As well as identifying all potential measures for each property
and across the stock, the model tests user-defined investment
scenarios. These can:



Page 45 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

e Seek the most cost-effective ways of reaching energy targets,
such as minimum SAP rating or Net Zero, across all stock or a
specified group;

e Model the effect of a planned installation programme;

¢ |dentify additional measures that meet various criteria that could
be added to an existing programme; and

e Calculate SAP, fuel bill and CO2 savings for all options and
scenarios evaluated.

8.7  The outputs of this modelling will then be used to determine the
investment priorities to achieve NZC milestone and other maintenance
requirements.

9.0 ASSET PERFORMANCE MODELLING

The Council will assess viability and re-investment priorities through a
Stock Viability Model that takes account of a range of factors including
demand and projected costs. This appraisal process results in
individual properties being allocated a red, amber, or green re-
investment status (RAG).

9.1  This will provide an opportunity to tailor our management,
maintenance, improvement and investment of our properties based on
a key range of data.

9.2  The portfolio will therefore be divided into one of three categories:

1. Red — Those properties deemed to be of high risk (i.e. requiring
higher than average levels of reinvestment (or cost) in order to
maintain them in a good lettable condition) and/or that are in low
demand (i.e. are difficult to let or which have an unjustifiably
high void turnover rate).

2. Amber — Those properties that offer peripheral performance and
that require further investigation to be reclassified as either red
or green.

3. Green — Those properties that are in high demand and that

require average or below average levels of re-investment. This
category may otherwise be described as ‘core stock’.



Page 46 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

9.3  Property in Red or Amber status is to be the subject of further
investigation, or review through an options appraisal, until they are
either re-classified or until such time as an alternative strategy is
agreed.

9.4 A green status indicates that the stock classified as such is viable with
a long-term future, being of low cost and high demand. The majority of
stock falls within this classification and can be included within
reinvestment plans without concern. The assessment of cost is made
with direct reference to asset management data and associated
reports. Demand will be assessed with reference to housing
management perception informed by void turnover rates and
associated performance indicators.

10.0 LEASEHOLDERS

The Council has made a number of commitments to Leaseholders
which are contained within the Leasehold Management Policy.

10.1 Any reinvestment decisions and resulting works must provide cost
effective services, accurate and timely information and ensure that
service charges reflect actual costs in accordance with statutory
obligations and lease terms.

10.2 The Council will adhere to the statutory requirements for consultation
under Section 20 of the Commonhold and Leasehold Reform Act and
work with recognised organisations to ensure that we maintain a good
two way communication with leaseholders.

10.3 Before any work starts on a leaseholder’s property the Council will
consult the leaseholder on the extent, timing and estimated cost of the
work taking into consideration leaseholders’ comments and
recommendations.

11.0 FUNDING

The 30-year HRA Business Plan and associated 5 year Capital
Programmes identifying investment requirements define the resources
available to the Council for the management and maintenance of the
housing stock. There are defined categories to which re-investment
can be directed and the manner in which the business will be regulated
and monitored.



Page 47 Agenda ltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

11.1 The requirements for revenue related activities including the
management and reactive repairs and maintenance of the Housing
Stock are assessed annually.

Appendix 3 -5 Year Capital Programme 2023/24 — 2027/28



Page 43 Agenda Iltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee 27t February
2023

Qutturn 1 2 3 4 5

022/23 02314 02425 202526 202627  2027.28

i £ £ £ £ £

Major Repairs Heserye
Internal Reburbishment 300,000.00 2,500,000 2,500,000 2500000 AB00000 2500000
Boiler Feplacements 450,000.00 860,000 780,000 780,000 750,000 750,000
High Trees Project 30,000.00 380,000 400,000 0 1] 1]
Erternal Refurbishment 225,000.00 300,000 500,000 700,000 00,000 £00,000
Electrical Upgrades 300,000.00 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Dioor Entry and Security Upgrades B00,000.00 100,000 100,000 100,000 78,000 76,000
Smake Detection Upgrades 530,000.00 300,000 300,000 300,000 100,000 100,000
Balzony Feplacements 10,000.00 100,000 300,000 300,000 200,000 1]
Major Woids T0,000.00 500,000 500,000 500,000 B0, 000 B00,000
Energy Efficiency 270,000.00 740,000 740,000 760,000 780,000 50,000
Disrepair Cazes T85,000.00 B0,000 B0,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
Fire Compartmentation 1590,000.00 1,000,000 A00,000 260,000 250,000 260,000
(3arage Improvement warks . 100,000 260,000 260,000 260,000 250,000
Strucutral Repairs T5.000.00 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 TA.000
fizbestos General 200,000.00 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Capitalized Salaries 500,000 f00,000 500,000 500,000 B0, 000 500,000

6365000 7675000 7675000 7225000 6900000 6,600,000

Capital Receipts

Dizabled Adaptations 200,000 500,000 500,000 260,000 260,000 250,000
HR& Stack - Remodeling - 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Estate & Erwironmental Improvements 450,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000
Estates Parking and Paving - &0,000 160,000 160,000 160,000 150,000
Stock Condition Survey Fees 160,000 160,000 160,000 160,000 160,000

Housing Management 360,000

1,000,000 1050000 1,150,000 300,000 500,000 900,000

Mew BuildlAcquisitions 2900000 3000000 3000000 3000000 3000000 3200000

10265000 11725000 11825000 11125000 10,800,000 10,700,000

Financed by

tajor Repairs Reserve BIEEO00 7BTA000 TETEO00 7225000 GA00000  GEO00,000
Capital Feceipts 1000000 1,080,000 1150,000 300,000 300,000 300,000
Capital Receiptz earmarked for acquizition 1160,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1200000 1200000 1280000
HR & Capital Reserve 140,000 1,800,000 1800000 1800000 1200000 1320000

HR - Barrowing

10265000 11,725,000 11,825,000 11125000 10,800,000 10,700,000




Page 49

Agenda Iltem 5

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Committee
2023

27" February

Appendix 4 — Tenant Satisfaction Measures

Measured by landlords
directly

TP - Measured by doing
tenant perception surveys

TPO1: Overall satisfaction

RP - Keeping properties in good repair

RPO1: Homes that do not meet the
Decent Homes Standard

TPO2: Satisfaction with repairs

RPO02: Repairs completed within target
timescale

TPO03: Satisfaction with time taken to
complete most recent repair

TPO4: Satisfaction that the home is well
maintained

BS - Maintaining building safety

BSO01: Gas safety checks

TPO5: Satisfaction that the home is safe

BSO02: Fire safety checks

BS03: Asbestos safety checks

BS04: Water safety checks

BSO05: Lift safety checks

Respectful and

helpful engagement

TPO6: Satisfaction that the landlord listens
to tenant views and acts upon them

TPO7: Satisfaction that the landlord keeps
tenants informed about things that matter
to them

TPO08: Agreement that the landlord treats
tenants fairly and with respect

CH - Effective handling of complaints

CHO1: Complaints relative to the size of
the landlord

TPO09: Satisfaction with the landlord’s
approach to handling complaints

CHO2: Complaints responded to within
Complaint Handling Code timescales

NM - Responsible neighbourhood management

NMO1: Anti-social behaviour cases
relative to the size of the landlord

TP10: Satisfaction that the landlord keeps
communal areas clean and well maintained

TP11: Satisfaction that the landlord makes
a positive contribution to neighbourhoods

TP12: Satisfaction with the landlord’s
approach to handling anti-social behaviour




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 30 year HRA business plan, investment programme and asset management strategy for council housing

